San Mateo County Transportation Authority
1250 San Carlos Avenue, San Carlos, California

Citizens Advisory Committee (CAC)
Meeting Minutes

January 30, 2024

Members Present: B. Arietta (Chair), I. Bucio (arrived at 4:37 pm), G. Carlini, N. Enriquez, J.
(In Person) Fox (Vice Chair) (left at 6:17 pm), K. Kuklin, S. Lang, G. Mattammal
(arrived at 4:35 pm), A. Paul, M. Swire

Members Present: None
(Via Teleconference)

Members Absent: D. Bojack, J. Londer, P. Ohtaki

Staff Present: P. Skinner, P. Gilster, C. Mobley-Ritter, C. Liao, J. Manzi, J. Epstein,
A. Linehan, J. Brook

1. Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance

Chair Barbara Arietta called the meeting to order at 4:31 pm and led the Pledge of Allegiance.
2. Rollcall

Jean Brook, CAC Secretary, called the roll and confirmed that a quorum was present.

3.  Public Comment for Items Not on the Agenda

There were no comments.

4. Consent Calendar

4.a. Approval of Minutes of the CAC Meeting of January 9, 2024

TA Board Meeting Agenda for February 1, 2024

4.b. TA Board Item 5.b Acceptance of Statement of Revenues and Expenditures for the
Period Ending December 31, 2023

4.c. TA Board Item 5.c Acceptance of Quarterly Investment Report and Fixed Income Market
Review and Outlook

4.d. TA Board Item 5.d Amending the Fiscal Year 2024 Budget to Increase Total Expenditures
from $180,605,687 to $191,064,010

Regarding Item 4.d, Nheeda Enriquez asked what happens if the revenues fall below budget
and what the rationale was for changing programs in response. Cleo Liao, Manager, Budgets,



said for a year where the revenue is lower than the budget, they will go back to the Board to
request amendment of the budget to adjust the allocation for that category.

Gus Mattammal arrived at 4:35 pm.

Sandra Lang asked if the true-up filtered down to TA staff and individual cities, and Ms. Liao
confirmed that the true-up only affected the categories.

Regarding Item 4.a, Mike Swire said he had submitted some edits to the minutes of January 9.
Ivan Bucio arrived at 4:37 pm.

Peter Skinner, Executive Officer, Transportation Authority, reminded the members that the
meeting video stands as the official record of the meeting. He said that the minutes just reflect
the high-level actions of the Committee and are not a verbatim record. Ms. Brook noted that
the minutes in the CAC agenda packet are in draft format and members may raise questions or
make suggestions for amendment. She said that final versions of the minutes are posted under
the Minutes tab of the meeting page on the TA website. Mr. Skinner said that amendments
should only be made to one’s own comments and not to other members’ comments.

Motion/Second: Kuklin/Fox

Ayes: Arietta, Bucio, Carlini, Enriquez, Fox, Kuklin, Lang, Mattammal, Paul, Swire
Noes: None

Absent: Bojack, Londer, Ohtaki

5. TA Board Item 5.a Approval of Minutes of the Board of Directors Meeting of January 11,
2024

There were no comments.
6. TA Board Item 9.a Regional Transit Connections Plan Update
Patrick Gilster, Director, Planning and Fund Management, provided the presentation.

Amy Linehan, Government and Community Affairs Officer, presented on community and
stakeholder engagement, and the project schedule and next steps.

Giuliano Carlini asked if the TA collected what percentage of trips are made by the various
transit providers. Mr. Gilster said they used what they could get from published reports from
the different transit agencies and will be available in the Existing Conditions Report.

Mr. Swire said there are relevant comments in platforms such as Nextdoor and asked if there
was an effective way to data mine these platforms. Mr. Gilster said he would check with legal
counsel about that.

Ms. Lang asked about the outreach and asked how they identified the disabled community. Ms.
Linehan said the Government and Community Affairs does a roadshow where the go to various
stakeholder groups and present to the disability community. Ms. Lang said she would like them
to expand their outreach network to include more of the disability community. Ms. Linehan
said she would be happy to reach out to additional groups if Ms. Lang had suggestions.



Chair Arietta asked if the proposed BART (Bay Area Rapid Transit)/Caltrain merger would
impact the plan. Mr. Gilster said it would not necessarily impact their funding at all and that
both agencies would still submit their eligible projects to the TA.

Gus Mattammal asked if a large project such as the Dumbarton Rail Bridge would be part of the
scope. Mr. Gilster said that Dumbarton would be eligible for that category.

Vice Chair John Fox said he was supportive of the survey efforts.

Mr. Carlini asked how the TA knows about unsatisfied demand. Mr. Gilster said their consultant
is exploring ways to target non-riders.

Ms. Lang asked if the regional tax is a consideration. Mr. Gilster said it does not affect the
funding for the plan, which is funded by Measure W.

Mr. Swire asked if Seamless Bay Area and fare integration was in scope and does the TA have
an official policy or direction in that respect. Mr. Gilster said that Seamless Bay Area is not an
eligible stakeholder perse, but they could be involved in the public engagement process and
provide comment.

Ivan Bucio asked if there is a way to collect data from areas south of Santa Clara County. Mr.
Gilster said they did not look into that area and said the trips would need to start and end in
San Mateo County.

Public Comment:

Malcolm asked if the origin destination could be broken out from other geographic locations.
He said he supported thinking multimodally in planning transfers between modes, and asked if
there was a way to change the cost and some elements to allow people to make that mode
transition to public transportation. Mr. Gilster said they are asking about people’s barriers to
connecting to transit during community engagement.

Chair Arietta asked if ferry terminals were being considered in the plan. Mr. Gilster said that
Measure A had funding set aside for ferries and South San Francisco has one operating terminal
and is considering adding another. He said that the Redwood City ferry terminal is currently in
the preliminary engineering stage. He said that the Regional Transit Connections Plan included
vessel and other capital improvements and operating costs, which were not eligible under
Measure A.

Mr. Carlini asked how the percentage of capital versus operational would be determined.

Mr. Gilster said that part of the capital improvement program would help to inform this policy
decision later in the process. Mr. Carlini asked if they are looking at destinations or all trips, and
Mr. Gilster said they are looking at all trips from all modes.

7. TABoard Item 10.a US 101 Express Lanes: Quarterly Update on Variable Rate Bond and
Operations

Mr. Skinner introduced Kate Jordan Steiner, Chief Financial Officer, who provided the initial part
of the presentation on variable rate bond.

Ms. Lang asked when the revenue is going to handle the debt service, is that obligation
depending on toll revenue, which Ms. Jordan Steiner confirmed. Ms. Lang said it has been well



projected that the tolls would increase, but asked what the fallback position would be should
the tolls not increase. Ms. Jordan Steiner said they would look restructuring the bond.

Lacy Vong, Program Manager, SMCEL-JPA (San Mateo County Express Lanes Joint Powers
Authority), provided the presentation on the Express Lanes Operations, which included
highlights from the quarterly performance period. She said they are starting to see some
consistent trends.

Chair Arietta asked if there was a slight improvement in expenses. Ms. Vong said the expenses
coming in have been lower than originally projected. She said they had anticipated they would
need to have encumbered funds. Chair Arietta said she was concerned about the CHP
(California Highway Patrol) officers who patrol the express lanes were being paid overtime. Ms.
Vong said that the toll enforcement was considered an additional duty for which the CHP
officers are paid overtime. She said the CHP sets the overtime rates. She said they are looking
into other enforcement options in the future.

Mr. Carlini said he would like to see heatmaps for VMT (vehicle miles traveled) for various
times.

Mr. Swire suggested indicating the delta between the general purpose and express lanes
heatmaps. He asked how the current VMT compares to prior to the project.

Ms. Enriquez requested providing a scorecard based on the heatmaps to put the metrics into
context.

Vice Chair Fox said about 30 percent of trips fall into the image-based trips category. He asked
what percentage of trips have unidentified vehicles. He asked if they had a way to measure this
data. Ms. Vong said the majority of IBTs are tied to a FasTrak account. She said the ones that do
not have accounts, pay a toll plus a penalty fee. She said penalties and fees come in at under 10
percent of revenues. Vice Chair Fox said it would be helpful to know what percentage of cars
have license plates that are not readable.

Mr. Bucio asked if they had adequate amount of CHP coverage for toll lane enforcement. Mr.
Skinner said the CHP has limited time slots, so officers need to sign up for four-hour time slots
throughout the day.

Chair Arietta said she would like to see more control over the toll enforcement expenses.

Mr. Swire asked if the general purpose versus express lane congestion was expected. Ms. Vong
said the goal is to have a minimum 45 miles-per-hour (MPH) speed in the express lane.

Mr. Swire said is the project succeeding or failing based on the congestion. Ms. Vong said the
averages for the last quarter indicate that the toll system is working.

Mr. Carlini asked why a FasTrak account is required to use the toll lanes. Ms. Vong said using
the toll lanes is a choice, whereas using a bridge may be the only option.

Karen Kuklin said she had used express lanes throughout the state and that drivers are required
to have a FasTrak account or equivalent.
Vice Chair John Fox left the meeting at 6:17 pm.

The meeting recessed at 6:17 and reconvened at 6:24 pm.



8. TA Board Item 11 State and Federal Legislative Update
Ms. Linehan provided a summary of federal and state legislation and recent activity.

On the federal side, she said there would be another continuing resolution (CR). She said there
were two funding deadlines coming up on March 1 and March 8. She said the CR does not
include supplemental funding for Ukraine, Israel, and border security that was requested by the
Biden administration. She most recent stopgap funding measure is the third one passed by
Congress. She said appropriators could start drafting legislation. She said if lawmakers do not
make these deadlines, it would necessitate another CR.

On the state side, she said the Legislature has been acting to pass bills from 2023. She said the
bills need to pass out of the first house by January 31 or else they die. She said Governor
Newsom introduced his proposed budget on January 10, estimating a deficit of $38 billion . She
said the budget does preserve last year's $5.1 billion state commitment to public transit
operations and capital projects, but does delay the appropriations of some of this funding, so it
will come out later that it was initially scheduled to come out.

She said the Assembly and Senate subcommittees are meeting to review each of the agencies’
budgets. She noted state leadership changes. She said that there are many bills on the
legislative matrix that the TA is watching and that the language is likely to change as they move
from house to house. She said they like to watch how a bill evolves before making any
recommendation for the Board to take a position.

Mr. Carlini asked if the bill would affect the AV (autonomous vehicle) strategic plan.
Ms. Linehan said that it did have the potential to affect the AV strategic plan, so the TA was
watching it.

Mr. Swire asked what next steps would be on the topic of conversion of general purpose lanes
to managed lanes. Mr. Skinner said they would not be pursuing legislation for a project
alternative that has not yet been selected as part of the environmental process.

Ms. Lang asked regarding Senate Bill (SB) 915 about safety. Ms. Linehan said that is why they
are watching the bill and talking with other agencies about their positions on the bill, and
explained the evaluation process in detail.

Mr. Mattammal noted a bill that said that it was the intent of the Legislature to enact
subsequent legislation to encourage coordination collaboration among transit agencies.

Ms. Linehan said the bill was in response to another bill that was introduced, which is taking a
softer approach to the consolidation idea.

Mr. Carlini asked if workshops mentioned in the bills were open to the public. Mr. Skinner said
these are workshops for grant programs already established by state law. He said the CTC
(California Transportation Commission) workshops are open to the public but their purpose is
essentially to refine the guidelines for each of the respective SB 1 grant programs that the CTC
controls.

Mr. Swire asked how the TA interacts with MTC (Metropolitan Transportation Commission) and
how monies from MTC impact what the TA does. He asked if the funding comes directly to the
TA, and Mr. Skinner said the TA does not automatically get the money from MTC directly for a



particular project, but they would seek an allocation of funds from sources the TA is eligible to
receive to move forward with any work.

9. Report of the Chair
9.a. Update on Rules of Procedure Revision Process

Chair Arietta advised the CAC that volunteers are being sought for a three- to four-person ad
hoc committee. She said the committee will be charged with recommending updates to the
Rules of Procedure to the full CAC. She said that staff anticipates there will be three to four
meetings over the course of the next eight to 10 months, and the meetings will include the ad
hoc committee members, TA staff, and legal counsel. Chair Arietta asked interested CAC
members to email Ms. Brook before the next CAC meeting on March 5.

10. Report from Staff

Mr. Skinner said the report was in the packet. He announced that Martin Reyes, former
Principal Transportation Planner, had left the TA to join the San Francisco Transportation
Authority.

11. Member Comments/Requests

Chair Arietta said that she had read that San Francisco is the third most congested area in the
nation. She asked how San Mateo County’s congestion compares. Mr. Skinner said they can try
to find out from MTC.

Ms. Enriquez asked if the committee is just for nominating the Chair and Vice Chair, and Chair
Arietta said it was for updating the Rules of Procedure in general. Mr. Skinner said that legal
counsel would be providing support as well.

Ms. Lang noted that the primary election was coming up.

Mr. Swire said he sat in on the San Francisco County Transportation Authority Citizens Advisory
Committee (SFCTA CAC) meeting in December and he recommended that the officer candidates
introduce themselves as they did at the SFCTA CAC. Chair Arietta said she did not think it was
necessary to do so. Mr. Skinner said anyone interested in changing the Rules of Procedure
should consider joining the ad hoc committee.

Mr. Carlini announced that Calbike.org is advocating for a people-first mobility budget and said
he hoped the TA would adopt policies to support it and prioritize VMT-reducing projects.

12. Date/Time of Next Regular Meeting

Chair Arietta announced that the next meeting would be held on Tuesday, March 5, 2024, at
4:30 pm in person at the SamTrans Auditorium and via Zoom teleconference.

13. Adjourn
The meeting adjourned at 6:57 pm.
An audio/video recording of this meeting is available online at https://www.smcta.com/video-board-

directors. Questions may be referred to the CAC Secretary's office by phone at 650.508.6223 or by email
to cacsecretary@smcta.com.


https://www.smcta.com/video-board-directors
https://www.smcta.com/video-board-directors
mailto:cacsecretary@smcta.com

